ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE

March 11, 2013
1: 03 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT
Representative Eric Feige, Co-Chair
Representati ve Dan Saddl er, Co-Chair
Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Vice Chair
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Crai g Johnson
Representative Kurt O son
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Geran Tarr
Representative Chris Tuck

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Andrew Josephson
Representati ve Bob Herron

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 158

"An Act authorizing the conm ssioner of natural resources to
i npl ement a hunting guide concession program or otherwise limt
the nunmber of individuals authorized to conduct big gane
commercial guiding on state land."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 158
SHORT TI TLE: DNR HUNTI NG CONCESSI ONS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COSTELLO
03/ 05/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 05/ 13 (H RES, JUD, FIN
03/11/13 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
W TNESS REG STER
HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 11, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE M A COSTELLO

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 158.

ED FOGELS, Deputy Conmi ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provi ded a Power Point overview of the DNR s
state's gui de concessi on program

MR. FLEENER, Deputy Conm ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented a PowerPoint and answered
guestions during the discussion of HB 158.

MR. KELLY VREM Master CGuide 102; Chair

Big Game Conmercial Services Board (BGCSB)

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 158.

MR. PAUL JOHNSON, Regi stered CGuide 463
@l Cove, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 158.

TED SPRAKER, Chair

Board of Gane (BOG

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 158.

CLARK COX, Natural Resources Manager

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 158.

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 158.

THOR STACEY, Registered Guide 1194; Lobbyi st
Al aska Professional Hunters Associ ation (APHA)

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 11, 2013



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 158.

JOE KLUTSCH, WMaster Cuide 91; Representative

Al aska Professional Hunters Associ ation (APHA)

Ki ng Sal non, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 158.

Bl LL STEVENSQON, Regi stered Gui de 661
Sutton, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 158.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 03: 22 PM

COCHAIR ERIC FEIGE called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:03 p.m Representatives Hawker,
Johnson, Tuck, Oson, P. WIlson, Tarr, Saddler, and Feige were
present at the call to order. Representative Seaton arrived as
the neeting was in progress. Representati ves Josephson and
Herron were al so present.

HB 158- DNR HUNTI NG CONCESSI ONS

1: 03: 40 PM

CO CHAIR FEI GE announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 158, "An Act authorizing the comm ssioner of
natural resources to inplenment a hunting guide concession
program or otherwise limt the nunber of individuals authorized
to conduct big gane comercial guiding on state |and."

1: 04: 35 PM

REPRESENTATIVE M A COSTELLO, Alaska State Legislature, stated
that HB 158 would give the Conm ssioner of the Departnent of
Nat ur al Resources authority to inplement a hunting guide
concession program She explained the purpose of introducing
this bill is for the state to answer the question of whether the
state should have a guide concession area program She offered
that last legislative session the legislature appropriated
funding for Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR) to work on
public comrent and preparation for such a program Wi le the
issue is not new, HB 158 would allow the legislature to weigh in
and take public testinony. She expressed an interest in |and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 11, 2013



stewardship, wldlife conservation, and to pronote a healthy
hunti ng gui de industry.

REPRESENTATI VE COSTELLO said the state managenent of ganme is an
i mportant issue. Several departnents and two boards have been
involved in this issue. Additionally, she advised that the
House Finance budget subcommttee renoved funding for this
program since it is inportant for the legislature to answer the
af orenenti oned questi on.

1: 07: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COSTELLO raised the issue of overcrowding and
over wutilization in sonme gane nmanagenent areas (GWVMJ) and
underutilization in other GWMJ areas. Additionally, conflicts
wi th other user groups routinely occur. She offered her belief
this is a significant issue for the state to address, which is
one reason the committee room is so full today. This issue
pertains to | and managenent and ganme managenent issues that mnust
be answered. She summarized her interest is to ensure the state
manages its gane and resources for generations to cone.

1: 08: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON inquired whether the sponsor has
considered allowing the hunting guide concession program to
evolve regionally to address over or wunderutilization rather
than to take a statew de approach

REPRESENTATI VE COSTELLO said the DNR s Division of Mning, Land
and Water have conducted work related to this issue. One of the
things the DNR has indicated is that it would like to retain
some flexibility to address sone of the issues. Thus HB 158
specifically gives the power of creating such a program to the
commi ssioner, while the details would be designed by regul ation,
especially through the ongoing public comment peri od.

1: 09: 15 PM

CO- CHAIR FEI GE noted that today's testinony is by invitation.
1:10: 28 PM

ED FOCELS, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), introduced hinmself and

recogni zed sonme nenbers of the audience. He offered to provide
an overview of the guide concession program noting the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 11, 2013



department began its efforts in 2006. The departnent has been
asked to provide a solution and this is DNR s proposal, which
shoul d not be taken lightly since the program could potentially

significantly increase governnent and will require a nunber of
staff to inplement and run the proposed program Additionally,
the bill would create nore oversight and regulation of an

industry at a time when government is noving toward |ess
regul ati on.

1:12: 25 PM

MR. FOCELS asked to focus on the problens to be solved. He
related that the Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane (ADF&G), the
Board of Gane (BOG), and the Big Game Commercial Services Board
(BGCSB) have helped outline the issues related to big ganme and
guiding. First, one question that has been asked is why DNR has
been assigned to solve the issue. He predicted that the
testimony from the BOG and the BGCSB wll be fairly
enl i ght eni ng. Second, he asked whether this proposal wll help
the guiding industry, which is an inportant sector of Alaska's
econony that contributes hundreds of mllions of dollars to the
state's econony. He stated that nenbers of the guiding industry
will testify on the proposal. Third, he asked whether the guide
concession program (GCP) would help the state's wldlife and
answered that the ADF&G and BOG w Il testify on the GCP's effect

on wildlife managemnent. Finally, he asked whether the program
will help the public and if non-guided nmenbers will benefit. He
suggested that the board nenbers will be able to enlighten the
committee and nenbers of the public wll testify on the
pr oposal .

1:13:41 PM

MR. FOCELS provided a brief history of the guide industry in
Al aska. In 1974, the BOG established an area system limting
guides to operate within Exclusive CGuide Areas (E&). By 1976,
the program was extended statewide [slide 2]. In 1978, the

Al aska Supreme Court (ASC) found the EGA system unconstitutional
for several reasons. First, the ASC found a |ack of connection
to wildlife managenent. Second, the ASC found the guide
i ndustry did not provide any renmuneration to the state. Third,
the ASC found the industry was not subject to conpetitive
bi ddi ng and exclusivity, and finally, the ASC found the guide
areas were of unlimted duration wthout contractual terns or
restrictions.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 11, 2013



MR. FOGELS expl ai ned the proposed Gui de Concession Program ( GCP)
in HB 158 [slide 3]. He explained that the DNR is responding to
a problem identified by nenbers of the guiding comunity, the

BGCSB, and the Board of Gane (BOG. Additionally, forner
Governor Palin supported the DNR proposal as did a strong sector
of the guiding industry. |In essence, the program would create a

system that nmanages and distributes guided hunting pressure
through a conpetitive process that would be inplenmented on all
state | ands.

1:15:16 PM

MR. FOGELS highlighted the reason to inplenent the system on
state lands, including briefly outlining the issues identified
by the guide industry, the BGCSB ,and the BOG The i ssues,
related to the ongoing problens identified in the field,

i ncl uded a decr eased i ncentive to practice wildlife
conservation, especially in high use areas. The industry has
experienced a decreased quality of experience for guided
clients. O her problenms include increased conflicts between
user  groups, an overall lack of land stewardship, and
difficulties enforcing game laws. In short, these represent the

probl enms the DNR woul d attenpt to acconplish with its program
1:16: 07 PM

MR. FOCELS turned to slide 5, entitled, "Anticipated Benefits
and Most Common Concerns of the GCP." He explained an economc
reason exists to help the guiding industry in Al aska. Although
the primary goal of the GCP is to pronote a healthy guide
i ndustry, other concerns have been raised about the program from
t he public and sone gui des.

MR. FOCGELS briefly reviewed the 2011 Cuide License by d ass,
indicating the total nunmber of guides is 1,428, wth 312
contracting guides, or those who booked at |east one trip |ast
year [slide 6].

1:17:15 PM

MR. FOGELS highlighted that the concession system has been
i nplenented on other lands in Alaska, wth 110 concessions
available on Fish and WIldlife refuges [slide 7]. Currently,
the U S. Park Service has 36 concessions, and the U S. Forest
Service has 35 concessions. If the DNR s GCP goes forward an
addi tional 298 concessions would be added for a total of 479
concessi ons. Recalling the 312 contracting guides previously

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 11, 2013



nmenti oned, he noted there are currently nore concessions than
gui des operating at this tine.

MR. FOGELS related that a white paper was distributed in 2009
with a 113-day comment period, in which 277 comments were
received [slide 8]. A proposed decision was released on
February 15, 2012, with a 68-day comrent period, in which 190
comments were received. The DNR just finished a 37-day public
coment period for the Framework Managenent Docunent rel eased on
January 23, 2013, with the departnent receiving 77 conments.
Currently, the DNR has been working to fully analyze the 77
coment s, although nmost of the coments were reasonably
supportive of the program He noted very specific feedback was
recei ved. He offered his belief that the departnent can work
within many of the comments, but sone go beyond the "sideboards”
pl aced by the ASC s deci sion.

1:19: 20 PM

MR. FOGELS described the proposed GCP Design [slide 9]. The
program would offer two types of concessions, full and limted
concessi ons. The full concession has been designed for the
gui de who has been in the business as a serious professional,
noting 208 guides fit this category. Additionally, the limted
concession has been designed for entry-level guides, which
currently nunber 90. Each guide would be required to subnt an
application to conpete for the 136 guide areas in the state.
Al applications would then be evaluated and scored by panels
conprised of agency staff. The concessions would be offered to
t he hi ghest scoring applicants within each gui de concession area
and according to nunber of concessions available and type of
concessi on application. He indicated that no bidding will be
al | oned under this proposal.

MR. FOGELS discussed violations [slide 10]. He said that DNR
scoring wll reflect any violations by guides. Addi tionally,
while the fee structure is conplicated, it 1is wultimtely
designed to pay for the cost of the program estimted to be
about $1.4 mllion per year. As the programis inplenented, the
fees will be evaluated to nmke sure the program costs are
covered, which will be set by regulation. 1In essence, the DNR s
goal is to cover costs but not overcharge or wundercharge for
concessi ons.

1: 21: 56 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 11, 2013



VR FOGELS di rect ed attention to slide 12, entitled,

"Transferability and Vacancies." Concession areas would not be
allowed to be transferred, sold, or exchanged so as not to risk
bei ng wunconstitutional. He enphasized this initiated a big

debate on the program however, the Departnment of Law has
indicated it is inmportant not to risk being unconstitutional.

Additionally, a system for vacancies has been devel oped. He
indicated the system is sonewhat conplicated, which wll be
di scussed in nore detail |ater.

1:22:42 PM

MR. FOGELS pointed out two slides provide a sense of the
concession area maps [slides 13-14]. He stated that naps have
been prepared for the whole state. He offered to print them off
for the commttee and indicated a web link also allows people to
downl oad the map and review them on-Iline. The areas are
nunber ed, depicting the nunber of concessions in parenthesis and
showi ng the split between full and limted concessions.

MR. FOGELS directed attention to slide 15, entitled, "Hi storical

| nf ormation. ™ This slide indicates the progression over the
years, including what was proposed in the 2009 white paper, in
| ast year's proposal, and the current proposal. He offered his

belief that each version has considered public comments and
i ndustry conmments and program has been adjusted accordingly. He
said the DNR feels that the current franmework is "pretty close"

al though he imagined sone adjustnments wll still need to be
made. However, given the legal framework that DNR nust
currently operate under and the framework of the Al aska Suprene
Court's decision, it is not likely that too many significant
nodi fications will be made.

MR, FOGELS briefly discussed the current and required statutory
authority [slide 16]. He said given the current authority under
AS 38.05.020, AS 38.05.035, and AS 38.05.850, the Departnent of
Law believes the DNR has the authority to develop the program
This bill wll help to clarify the GCP program and allow for
addi ti onal debate and di scussion before the |egislature.

1:25: 00 PM
REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked for further explanation on the

hi storical information. She asked for clarification on full
assi stant gui de concessi ons.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 11, 2013



VR. FOGELS replied the DNR has tw different kinds of

concessions, which are full and limted concessions. Under the
proposal, each guide will be allowed to have a certain nunber of
assistant guides. As you can see the nunber has increased from
the 2012 figures [slide 15]. The |ead guide can have nore
assi stant guides, which allows himher to take out nore clients
into the field. Thus the greater the nunber of assistant

gui des, the nore clients that can be served. Therefore, the DNR
felt strongly that the nunber of assistant guides should be
capped; otherwi se, the effect is to not cap the level of guided
use in an area.

1: 26: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for the nunber of canps served by
gui des in each area as conpared to the current use.

MR. FOGELS responded that under the proposal, a guide assigned
three full concessions can have six assistant guides for each,
or a total of 18 assistant guides. Theoretically, the nunber of
canps or clients served would depend on the guiding operation
but the proposal outlines the total workforce for the area. The
current guide areas don't nesh with the proposed GCP areas so it

is more difficult to estimate the nunber of clients. Sone of
t hese problem areas have nore than three guides, with sone areas
having as many as twenty guides. He offered his belief that

this proposal would reduce the hunting pressure in sone of the
wel | -used areas.

1: 28: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON related a scenario in which 20 guides
wor ked. He asked whether this proposal would allow 18 canps.

MR. FOGELS responded that it's inportant to keep in mnd that

while there may be 20 guides in an area, each will have a nunber
of assistant guides, which would nmean that nore than 20 guides
could work in an area. However, currently the nunber of

assistant guides is not restricted for an area.

1:29:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would I|ike the departnent to
provide an estimate on the nunmber of canps currently operating

in order to conpare it to the nunber of canps that would be
permtted under the proposal.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 11, 2013



CO CHAI R SADDLER asked who requested the nunber of assistant
guides to increase from three to the six allowed under the
current proposal.

MR. FOCELS replied that DNR had proposed three assistant guides
in its 2012 proposal, but received substantial comments fromthe
i ndustry urging the departnent to allow nore assistant guides.
In fact, a strong contingent of guides did not want any limts
on the nunber of assistant guides. Wile the DNR and ADF&G felt
strongly that some cap was necessary, the DNR agreed to increase
t he cap based on comments to the 2012 proposal .

1: 30: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON asked whether the departnment woul d work
with the ADF&G to adjust "take" based on over utilization.

MR. FOGELS answered yes; DNR would be able to conduct periodic
eval uation of the programto see how it is working in terns of
fees or guides per area. He enphasized the DNR plans on
periodic evaluation and will adjust the "take" if necessary. He
rem nded nenbers that guided hunting is not the only pressure on
an area and the BOG al so nanages the public hunts.

1: 31: 49 PM

MR. FLEENER, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&G, added that the ADF&G

would  still have nmanagenent responsibilities to ensure
overharvest of wldlife does not occur. Additionally, the BOG
has simlar responsibilities. He explained that when the
departnment notices an inpact on wldlife resources, it wll

reduce harvest opportunities, as well.
1:32:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON asked whet her the departnment has enough
biologists in the field to nonitor activities. She under st ood
the |l egislature has cut funding for positions.

MR. FOCGELS answered that the fees for the GCP program are
designed to fund the staff for the program He understood t hat
approximately 11 DNR staff and one or two staff from ADF&G woul d
manage the program He anticipated some on-the-ground
enforcement wll be covered by these fees. Additionally, other
ADF&G staff will be doing field work, too. He said the hope is
that this programw Il be self-funding and self-sufficient.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- March 11, 2013



1: 33: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said it seens as though nore gui des and
nore assistant guides in the program would result in nore
funding to cover staff necessary for the program She asked
whether there are any checks and balances to prevent the
possibility of allowing too many guides in order to sustain
program f undi ng.

MR. FOGELS answered that the GCP program has been designed to
spread the guide concessions throughout the state based on where
the guiding activity and gane popul ati ons exist. Every guide
area wll have between 1-3 full concessions, he said. The cost
has been desi gned based on the DNR s best estinmate on the nunber
of guides. As the system changes, the regulations will need to
be changed, which will also require public invol venent.

1: 35: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK returned to the nunber of assistant guides
allowed. He recalled that originally the white paper was set by
an operations plan. He asked whether the DNR planned to have
sonmeone submit a plan and if the departnent would approve or
di sapprove the nunber of guides.

MR. FOGELS answered that is correct. He explained the nunber of
assistant guides would have been based on a proposal by the
gui des.

1: 36: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK referred to an earlier map [slide 13]. He
asked whether the map was a 1974 map or if it was prepared
recently.

MR. FOGELS answered the nmap was recently developed through
substantial work by ADF&G and DNR, as well as by both boards.
In further response to Representative Tuck, he agreed it was
created in anticipation for the franmework docunent issued in
January, which is contained in HB 158.

1:37: 07 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for the regulatory process. For

i nstance, the ADF&G found too nany bears were being taken,
whet her the DNR would limt the nunber of assistant guides.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 11, 2013



MR. FLEENER answered that question is best answered by the ADF&G
and the BOG He did not envision that DNR would review annua

program changes because it wuld be inpossible to do so.

I nstead, the restrictions would clearly come from ADF&G and BOG

He suggested that the DNR would work in conjunction w th ADF&G
and the BOG This could result in changes to draw hunts,
general season hunts, or by restricting seasons and bag limts
to address declining wldlife popul ati ons.

1: 39: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how that would relate to the
restricted gui de area concessi ons.

VR. FLEENER offered to discuss this | ater on in the
presentati on.

1: 39: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR recalled in 1973 the |l egislature created the
Gui de License Control Board. She asked whether the BGCSB is the
sane board.

MR. FOCELS answered no; that the Guide License Control Board no
| onger exists. He deferred to the BGCSB to provide the history.

CO- CHAIR FEIGE pointed out there was a gap in tinme between the
end of the guide license control board and the begi nning of the
BGCSB.

1: 40: 51 PM

KELLY VREM Master @iide 102; Chair, Big Gane Conmercia
Services Board (BGCSB), stated the guide board was sunsetted in
the 1970s and another board was instituted and |ater sunsetted.
He offered his belief this is the third version of the guide
i censing board. He deferred to Paul Johnson, the immediate
past chairman of the BGCSB t o answer.

1:41: 30 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TARR referred to the boundaries of the proposed

map and asked whether these boundaries match the BOG boundari es,
in ternms of allocation managenent.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 11, 2013



VR. FLEENER responded that these nmaps overlap the gane

managenent units (GW) very well. He said the sub-units follow
those lines pretty well, too.
1:42: 11 PM

CO- CHAIR SADDLER referred to slide 14 in nmenbers' packets
entitled, "GCA Map O ose-up." He asked what the small squares
refer to since he cannot read the | egend due to the print size

MR. FOGELS answered he thinks Co-Chair Saddler is referring to
the nunbers in brackets. For exanple, 14-04 has three total
concessions, of those, two would be full concessions and one
woul d be a limted concession.

1:42:45 PM

CO- CHAIR SADDLER referred to GCA map 14-02 and asked him to
identify the full concessions and the Iimted concessions.

MR. FOCELS answered that the concessions will only apply to
state |ands, which are shaded blue on the nmap. He added that
t he gui des woul d be able to operate anywhere in the area.

1: 43: 35 PM

MR. FOGELS directed attention to slide 17, entitled, "Tinmeline,"
which refers to the framework docunent prior to HB 158 being
i nt roduced. Essentially, the tineline begins with the January
23- February 28, 2013 public conmment period. The tineline
assuned regul ati ons woul d be developed in the Spring and Summer
2013, and staff would be hired in the Fall 2013. Next fall, a
call for applications would occur, which he anticipated would be
approximately 1,000 applications. The applications would be
scored throughout the Sumrer 2014 and the DNR would notify
gui des approximately in August-Septenber 2014 of areas, wth
gui de concession areas being effective January 1, 2015. However
this tinmeline may change based on HB 158, he said.

1:44: 43 PM

MR. FLEENER reported that ADF&G has worked closely with DNR on
this for about three years. He nanmed reasons for the proposal
including inpacts to wldlife, reducing overcrowding, inproving
stewardship, inproving hunter success and satisfaction rates,
and responding to requests by the BGCSB and BOG to nmke changes
to inprove the overall system He nentioned the need for action

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- March 11, 2013



relates to increasing problens, which includes inpacts to
wildlife populations, user conflicts due to overcrowding, and
declining stewardship [slide 18].

MR. FLEENER directed attention to slide 19, entitled, "Case
Study - Chugach Sheep.™ This exanple uses the Dall sheep in
Gane Managenent Unit (GW) 14A since sonme of the greatest
conflicts in terns of guide overcrowding relates to Dall sheep.
He prefaced his comments by stating the departnment really has
not identified any popul ation-wi de negative inpacts from user
conflicts associated with unregulated guiding. However, the
ADF&G has identified a nunmber of areas experiencing severe
impacts to certain age classes. For exanple, referring to slide
19, one segnent of the Chugach Dall sheep popul ation that has
been inpacted is the nunber of full-curl rams. That part of the
popul ati on has experienced a significant decrease. The areas in
the state with the largest inpact include GW 13A, which is
G ennallen and west, GW 13D, dennallen and south, and GV 14A
which is the Palnmer-Wasilla area. Addi tionally, the ADF&G has
growi ng concerns about GWJ 19C, since the departnent has noticed
sonme increases; however, he anticipated that the problem wll
wor sen.

1: 47:46 PM

MR. FLEENER, returning to slide 19, pointed out the overharvest
of full-curl ranms and overcrowding. The ADF&G went to a draw ng
hunt in 2008 and the bar graph significantly dropped. He al so
pointed out the significant decrease in hunter opportunities
from 2007-2008. The nunbers on the left side of the graph
i ndicates the nunber of hunters or permts awarded whereas the
nunbers on the right side of the graph indicate the actual
nunber of harvested rans. The lines shown in orange represent
resident harvest while the green lines depict the non-resident
har vest . In essence, the slide shows a significant decrease in
overal | hunt er opportunities. He pointed out severe
restrictions are sometinmes necessary to resolve these types of
conflicts. For exanple, the ADF&G and board instituted a permt
hunt in 2008 to protect the segnent of wldlife population in
troubl e.

MR. FLEENER said also of inportance to note is the crossover of
success rates depicted. He pointed out that beginning in 2004-

2005 the orange line, or resident success rate, starts to
decline and continued to decline until 2010. In 2002, the non-
resident success rate began to increase [until 2005]. o

course, resident hunters woul d be vocal about their inability to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- March 11, 2013



successfully harvest rams. In fact, the departnent continues to
hear about overcrowding and resident hunters not being able to
nmeet their needs. According to regional wildlife staff, the
declining resident participation and success rates are
attributed to overcrowding and conflicts on the ground.

1:49: 57 PM

MR. FLEENER indicated it is easy to see that ADF&G was able to
resolve the problens of overharvest and overcrowding, wth
resident success stabilized and increasing beginning in 2008
t hrough 2012. Certainly, this is logical given that far fewer
hunters are on the ground in drawing hunts so the success rates
w Il increase and hunter satisfaction correspondingly increases.

MR. FLEENER said the problem with severe limtations on non-
resident opportunity is that it has the potential to decrease
state revenue due to lost license and tag fees, as well as the
dollars hunters spend. Moreover it makes it difficult for
hunting guides to have effective business planning due to
restrictions on permts and nunerous guides operating in the
same area. He reiterated that the departnment doesn't only
consider dollars and cents, but the comittee should be aware
the potential for decreased revenue exists if the ADF&G or the
BOG goes to very restricted nunbers of permts instead of
provi di ng anpl e opportunity to hunters.

MR. FLEENER surm sed that the general anount of noney brought
into the state by guided hunters is $12,000-$15, 000 on average.
He anticipated that this topic will be covered in nore detail
during testinony.

1:51: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON asked how many |icensed guides are non-
residents and how many |icensed gui des are residents.

1:52: 22 PM

MR. PAUL JOHNSON, Registered Guide 463, noting he previously
served on the BGCSB, stated that about 15 percent of the guides

are non-resident guides. He said that under the commobn use
clause [in the Al aska Constitution] the state cannot restrict
non-residents from obtaining professional |icenses. In further

response to Representative WIson, he said that assistant guides
figures are higher, but he was uncertain of the figures. Still,
nost of the assistant guides are residents, he said.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 15- March 11, 2013



1: 53: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to slide 19 entitled "Case Study
- Chugach Sheep." He asked whether the purpose of the draw hunt
was to reverse the non-resident take with non-residents taking a
greater share of the harvest.

MR. FLEENER answered no; that is not the purpose of the program
at all. What he attenpted to say is that inplenenting a permt
was a last-ditch effort to stabilize a decreasing segnent of the
popul ation favored for hunting. The graph illustrates the
success rate. He referred to the 2008-2012 period in which
animals taken by non-residents were limted to two or three
animals and resident opportunity highest being at 12 harvested
ranms, which was less |imted. The departnment and BOG s goal has
been to stabilize the population and prevent the 8-year-old,
full-curl ram population from decreasing any further and also
i ncrease the hunter success rates and overall satisfaction.

TED SPRAKER, Chair, Board of Gane, stated he would cover this
topic during his presentation.

1:55: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed an interest in how the Al aska
GCP program would have affected the ram harvest and hunter
nunmbers in GW 14A if it had been inplenented in 2008, instead
of the draw hunt, as depicted on the graph. He wondered if
concession guides would take a higher percentage of the rans.
It seens if the problemis a biological problem it is probably
a different solution, given that residents hunt, as well. In
essence, he asked what effect will the concession program versus
[draw hunt policy have with respect to] the resident and non-
resi dent take.

MR. FLEENER answered that from the ADF&G s perspective the end
result is to attain viable wildlife populations that can sustain
harvests over the long term He indicated his primary interest
is to neet the needs of Al aska residents, with subsistence being
first, and to expand the opportunity to others as harvestable
surplus is available. He predicted that the GCP would have
wor ked better since it would not have necessitated the BOG to be
Sso restrictive [in 2008 by instituting a draw hunt]. He
suggested the [draw hunts] nake it nmuch tougher for guides to
have a business pl an. For exanple, if a small nunber of non-
resident permts are available but the nunmber of guides in an

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- March 11, 2013



area is not restricted, it could nmean 25-30 guides and numerous
assistant guides are operating in an area. Therefore, it nakes
it tough for guides to develop their business plans. He
anticipated the guide representatives will discuss this in nore
detail; however he has heard from guides that when hunts are
restricted to only a few permts, guides don't know whether they
will be selected, which adversely affects their business plans.

1:57:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK understood the aforenmentioned chart depicts
t he nunber of resident and non-resident hunters. However, the
total population of rams is not indicated. He understood that
in 2007, the ADF&G put in place [draw hunt] neasures to increase
the population densities of 8-year old rans. The neasure
resulted in the nunmber of resident/non-resident permt hunts and
the harvested anounts. He understood M. Fleener to say that
wasn't a good thing, or that it could have been prevented if a
concession plan had been in place. He asked whether the [draw
hunt] was effective in increasing the ram popul ati on.

MR. FLEENER answered absol utely. He said the success rates for
residents increased; however, the harvest opportunities for
residents and non-residents decreased since far fewer hunters
were in the field. From the perspective of nmanaging the single
age-class, the draw hunt was successful. He deferred to M.
Spraker to el aborate.

1:59:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK pointed out that the graph doesn't show the
outcone, but the ADF&G "knows" [it positively affected the 8-
year-ol d ram popul ation].

MR. FLEENER answered that is correct.

1:59: 43 PM

MR. SPRAKER offered to weigh in since the comments have noved
into the BOG activities. He rem nded nmenbers the BOG nust first

manage on a sustained yield basis. Therefore, conservation is
the BOG s nunber one priority. Next, the process is a step-down
process. As Representative Tuck alluded to, there is the
"buil ding back”™ of a population, but the [permt hunt] also
allows for a quality hunt. Wile the BOG doesn't attenpt to

gquantify quality, the BOG is very cognizant of overcrowding in
ar eas.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- March 11, 2013



MR. SPRAKER explained the process the BOG took to address the

Chugach ram i ssue. First, the BOG considered the conservation
i ssue. As M. Fleener nmentioned, the nunber of |egal rans was
decr easi ng. Second, the BOG considered overcrowding and

conpetition in the hunts. He nentioned a prior article he read
by Representative Ma Costello [not in nenbers' packets] that he
t hought hit on a nunber of points the board nust consider.
Again, he characterized the process as being a "step-down
process,” with conservation considered first and crowded hunts
consi dered next.

2:01:17 PM

MR. FLEENER continued his presentation. He reviewed the harvest
success rate in GW 13D and 14A [[slide 20]. The harvest for
GWJ 13D Tazeast dropped by 59 percent. This slide indicates the
actual nunbers of hunters and harvest. |n 2003, GW 13D Tazeast
had 88 hunters with 27 sheep harvested. The resident hunt
success rate was 22 percent, and the non-resident success rate
was 65 percent. By 2008, draw permt hunts were inplenented

which resulted in 43 hunters, 11 harvested sheep, or 26 percent
resident hunt success rate as conpared to 79 percent non-

resi dent success rate. This depicts the overall opportunity,
whi ch decreases by nore than 50 percent when the departnent
switched from a general hunt to a draw permt hunt. On the

whol e, these figures show a |ot of hunters, with very |ow hunter
success rates, and a reduction of 50-80 percent hunter
opportunity by going to the draw permt. This slide indicates
that when the draw program was inplenented, it severely limted
hunter opportunity, which has a greater negative inpact on
resi dent hunt er s; however , he offered his  belief t hat
i npl enenting the permt hunt did reestablish healthy full-curl
ram popul ati ons and i nproved success rates.

2:04: 04 PM
MR. FLEENER tuned to slide 21, entitled, "ADF& - An exanple of
GCP benefits.” He read, as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

e Unit 8, Kodiak) is by far ADF&G s nobst active area for
guides in Region II.

 Wthin the Kodiak archipelago there are 30 guide use
areas, about 6 of which have significant state |ands
within them

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 11, 2013



* Although there are rarely guide-resident conflicts in
GWJ 8, passage of the proposed guide concession would
enhance our ability to work cooperatively w th guides
to assure residents have fair treatnent.

e If history is a good teacher, we can learn from the
Kodi ak NWR exclusive guide areas that the guides who
are awarded these concessions are better stewards of
the resources, better partners to let us know what is
going on within their areas, and are nore engaged in
t he public process.

e The guides are also able to provide better services
for their clients because they are nore wlling to
i nvest in infrastructure (e.g. cabins or t ent
platforns) and they have a better ability to advertise
and provide hunts in the future.

e It would be an asset to state resources to inplenent a
fair gui de concession program

MR. FLEENER said the second to the last paragraph sunmarizes
that guides can have a better ability to advertise and provide
future hunts if they are operating in an area. Thus a smal
group of guides with a long-term business plan can provide a
better quality hunt for clients as conpared to numerous guides
and assistant guides operating in overcrowded areas in which ram
popul ati on i ssues have al so devel oped.

2:06: 01 PM

CO CHAIR FEIGE asked whether the nunber of ganme aninmals has
i ncreased or decreased statew de since the policy changes in the
1990s.

MR. FLEENER answered that it depends on the species and which
general population is under consideration. For exanple, sone
cari bou herds have increased and some have decreased. In his
data review, he did not see any dramatic declines that appeared
related to sheep. He deferred to M. Spraker to el aborate, due
to his long-term board experience. He said the departnent has
done a good job increasing nobose nunbers in sone parts of the
state; however, Alaska is a big state and gane nanagenent is a
very conpl ex question.

2:08:25 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- March 11, 2013



CO- CHAIR FEIGE pointed out federal lands within the state have
concessi ons. He asked for the relative health of the gane
popul ations in those areas conpared to state areas.

MR. FLEENER responded that he could speak nore about hunter
satisfaction, in general, rather than the relative health of
gane popul ations on federal | ands. From his discussions wth
DNR, he has heard that many guides prefer to hunt on federa
| ands due to |less crowded hunting, good wldlife populations,
and the target age class of animals typically being better than
on state | and.

2:09: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK, referring to the six assistant guides per
concession [proposed GCP progran], assuned that the npst
gqualified master guides would be selected prior to taking new
entrants. He asked whether the guides could be located in
Mont ana whil e the six assistant guides were working in Al aska.

MR. FLEENER was unsure, but recalled that the hunter nust have a
registered guide with him while out hunting, but perhaps it
could be the assistant guide. He admtted this is an area in
which he is unfamliar.

COCHAIR FEIGE noted sone statutes were changed | ast
| egi sl ature.

MR. JOHNSON answered that the process is still an ongoing
process. In response to Co-Chair Feige's question on
supervision levels, the provision is not in HB 158; however, the
guide mnmust in the state. This requirement was not previously
required; however, the supervision level wll be increased once

regul ati ons are adopt ed.

2:11:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked whet her the operations plan used to be
part of the proposal, but is now limted to the scoring system

that will be used.

MR. FLEENER answered that the guides nust still submt an
operations plan as part of their application package.

2:12: 05 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- March 11, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE TARR referred to the licensure system for guides,
including assistant guides, nmaster guides, and registered
gui des. She asked whether the criteria wll be reevaluated
t hrough the regulatory process if HB 158 passes.

MR, FOGELS said he believed so. He suggested that the
regul atory process will be driven by the bill that is passed
The departnment wll receive guidance on the program and wll

adj ust the regul ations accordingly.
2:13:09 PM

CO- CHAIR SADDLER inquired why the DNR is tackling this issue
i nstead of the ADF&G and the BOG

MR. FOGELS answered that the 1988 Al aska Suprene Court deci sion,
[ Cswi chek], basically threw out the old guide program which
specifically pointed to DNRs l|land concession and |and
permtting authority to inplenent the areas.

MR. FLEENER concurred. However, the ADF&G has worked closely
with DNR and believes the new program will help resolve the
pr obl em While there are guides who do not support this
solution, he has heard from a nunber of guides who support the
GCP' s concession program Many guides are asking for regulation
of their own program due to inpacts on the resource, which he
characteri zed as good stewardship. He offered his belief that
the ADF&G is trying to be responsive to that request.

2:15: 24 PM

CO CHAI R SADDLER asked whether not having this program would
require the BOG to have nore draw permts.

MR. FLEENER offered his belief that is correct.

MR. FOGELS added there are a nunber of ways the issue could be
resolved. |In fact, the GCP program r represents only one solution
to the issue, so the debate is whether this is the appropriate
solution. He pointed out the full-curl ram popul ati on addressed
in slide 19, which required the BOG to take radical neasures to
addr ess. He suggested M. Spraker will speak to the downsides
of that approach.

2:16: 41 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- March 11, 2013



MR. SPRAKER explained the BOG considers DNR to have the
authority to establish the |easing program and set up the guide

control use areas, but the ADF&G will continue to provide the
BOG information to make management decisions with respect to
wildlife conservation. In essence, the DNR, the ADF&G & the

BOG work in unison, but the BOG has the final decision-nmaking
authority in terms of whether a nore restrictive harvest program
i s adopt ed.

2:17:21 PM

CO CHAI R FEI GE understood the guides would be spread out across
the land by DNR, but the program would not interfere with the
ADF&G s or the BOGs ability to manage gane popul ations by
setting bag limts and seasons.

MR. SPRAKER answered yes.
2:17:49 PM

CO CHAI R SADDLER echoed that as the [ADF&G & the BOG considers
the health of the resource, the distribution of the guiding
effort would be one factor considered.

[ MR SPRAKER nodded yes. ]
[ MR FLEENER nodded yes. ]
2:18: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said it seened like the state has a
contract with the guides. He asked what the process will be if
the state's contract with the guides is broken when nore
restrictive nmeasures are put in place.

MR. FLEENER did not think such changes would be breaking a
contract because the gui de concession program does not guarantee
access or a successful hunt. Instead, it provides opportunities
for guides to take hunters out to use the | and. He said that
aspect [land use] would always be available through the guide
concession program Additionally, the ADF&G and BOG nust al ways

manage the wildlife populations, which will be in the forefront
when the departnent and the board nake decisions on whether or
not a gui de-concession programw || exist.

2:19: 52 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- March 11, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON rel ated a scenario such that in year one
hunts are allowed, but in year two the hunts are restricted. He
asked whether the state is legally responsible for a guide's
| ost revenue if the state finds it nust reduce the ternms of the
guide's five-year contracts. He expressed concern over the
liability.

MR. FLEENER responded that did not think the state would be "on
the hook." He said that hunting is a ganble due to weather and
game popul ati ons. He deferred to others to provide a nore
definitive | egal viewpoint.

2:21:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON referred to the chart on slide 20 for GW
13D that indicated a 90 percent success rate on guided sheep
hunts and 70 percent success rate for non-guided hunts. He
characterized this statistic neant hunters using a guide were
nearly guaranteed a successful sheep hunt.

MR. FLEENER answered yes; that hunting with a guide is a good
way to be successful.

2:22:01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON related he has sone questions regarding
contracts that are better answered by the House Judiciary
Commttee. He recalled earlier testinony that the permt hol der
for the concession would be in the area or in an adjacent area.
He asked whether the guide in question would have two areas and
if a guide can have nore than one area.

2:22:53 PM

CLARK COX, Natural Resources Manager, Departnent of Natural
Resources (DNR), answered that wunder the proposal guides can
apply for and hold up to three guide areas, which is simlar to
the current system

2:23:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whet her the areas woul d be adjacent
ar ea.

MR, COX answered that the guide use areas don't need to be
adj acent areas.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- March 11, 2013



2:23:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether the guide could be in one
part of the state with clients hunting in another part of the
state.

MR. COX pointed out that hunting seasons al so vary.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether a guide could hold a npose
permt in three different areas. In further response to a
guestion, he agreed a guide could hold a noose, sheep, or bear
permt in three different areas.

2:23: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, returning to the Chugach case study
[statistics on slide 19], noted an increase in the guided non-
resident take, which he said caused concern about the ram
popul ation and led to the BOG limting hunting through a permt
hunt . He asked how many guides and canps participated in that
el evat ed harvest. He expressed his interest that if the sane
nunber of guides and hunters under the six assistant guides
could hunt under the proposed program it mght not change the
bi ol ogi cal nakeup of the rans. Wil e sone guides mght not
participate to ensure the health of the herd, it seenmed to him
the non-residents certainly affected the population dynam cs.
He requested the population and guide figures at the next
meeting so he could see how this proposal would solve the
probl em

MR. SPRAKER responded that 36-38 guides operated during the

af orenenti oned case study, [slide 19]. He agreed that was the
primary reason for BOG action to |imt hunters by instituting a
draw hunt. He characterized the conpetition [at the tinme] as

being "fierce.”
2:27: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked whether this bill would be limted to
non-residents who are required to obtain guide services for
hunti ng brown bear, Dall sheep, or nobuntain goats. She further
asked whether the proposal would be expanded to include black
bear, nmoose, or caribou.

MR. COX answered no; that while this bill primarily pertains to
guided clients a resident could hire a guide and would be
subject to the sanme requirenents. In further response to a

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- March 11, 2013



guestion, he said the requirenents apply to all guided species,
i ncl udi ng noose, bl ack bear, and cari bou.

2:28: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked whether the concession is transferable
if a business would was sold during the five-year tineline.

MR. COX answered that the concession is nontransferable so if
sonmeone chose to leave in year two or three, the authorization
woul d be referred back to the departnent. He commented that the
DNR woul d maintain a reserve |list of people who had conpeted for
the guide use area. In the event a vacancy occurred, the
concession would go to the next person on the |ist.

2:28: 58 PM

MR. SPRAKER provided his background. He said he has lived in
Al aska for 40 years and has served on the Board of Gane (BOG
for three governors. Currently, he said he serves as the
chairman of the BOG and he previously served on the Big Gane
Commercial Services Board (BGCSB) from 2004-2013. He asked to
briefly discuss challenges the BOG wll face if the qguide
concession programis not inplenmented [slide 22]. He clarified
that he would not be reviewwnng the budgets or the program
configuration, but would focus on the wildlife resources. He
indicated the BOG has two nmjor concerns. First, the BOG is
concerned about conservation of the state's wldlife resources.
Second, the BOG has concerns about overcrowdi ng and conpetition
between resident and non-resident hunters. Thus he has witten
three letters to the BGCSB to support limting the nunber of
guides and their ability to nove around the state. He offered
his belief that the current system which does not limt the
nunber of guides, has resulted in fairly heavy, locally limted
over harvest of gane.

2:30:58 PM

MR. SPRAKER related that at every BOG neeting since 2003, new
proposals have requested sone reduction of harvest by non-
resi dents. In the past few years, these proposals focused on
sheep harvest, primarily due to conpetition and overharvest of
| egal rans for sheep hunting. However, he has also noticed sone
proposal s have spread to enconpass all big gane, with requests
for some type of reduction on non-resident take for all big
gane.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- March 11, 2013



MR. SPRAKER stated that the requests to the BOG conme in two

forms. First, proponents would like to elimnate all non-
resident hunters. He characterized this request as being a
comon st at enent . At the very least, proponents would like to

stagger the opening hunting season dates to give residents a
five-to-seven day head start before non-residents can hunt.
Second, in the next |Ilevel of proposals, proponents suggest
l[imting non-residents to only participate through draw ng
permts. These proposals typically include an allocation, which

is typically around 10 percent. In fact, he recently reviewed
all the hunts and estimated the effect of reducing them to 10
per cent . Such action would nmake a huge difference, he said

Wiile the BOG does not |ook at the financial aspects and only
consi ders conservation aspects, it is aware of the inpacts. In
conclusion, he said reducing non-resident take to 10 percent
woul d have a significant inpact in ternms of the hunter dollars
comng into the state since fees for licenses and tags are
designated to the ADF&G for ganme managemnent.

2: 33: 06 PM

MR. SPRAKER el aborated on the overcrowdi ng issue. For exanpl e
GWJ 13D and 14A, the Palnmer to dennallen area, had 36-38 guides
operating in it. The BOG convened a "town hall™ neeting to
di scuss overcrowdi ng, which resulted in a good discussion. I t
was at this neeting that he learned the financial difficulty
gui des experience on planning based on permt hunts. Al but
one of eight guides at the town hall neeting said they'd "had
enough" since the conpetition is so great that clients have a
limted opportunity for success. These guides indicated they
woul d rather have permt hunts since it would raise the quality
of the hunt, the size of the ram would increase, the client
woul d have nore rams to consider, and the conservation wll be
addr essed. However, the main reason these guides supported a
permt hunt is to address the overcrowdi ng issues.

2:34:30 PM

MR. SPRAKER pointed out the BOG will also consider GW 20A,
south of Fairbanks, the spring of 2014. He said approximtely
13 guides are registered for the area, but what he has heard
from guides is that the area can only support about a third of
that nunmber in order to provide quality hunts.

MR. SPRAKER explained there is a difference between guides

conpeting with guides or conpetition between residents. From a
BOG perspective and a state's rights perspective, conpetition

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- March 11, 2013



wi th gui des adversely affects residents because residents have a
tough time conpeting with the guided hunts. He pointed out nost
guides are well equipped with [arge canps, wall tents, a string
of horses, aircraft, or other enhancenents since this is their
busi ness. Therefore, the average hunter has a tough tine
getting gane in areas with substantial guide conpetition.

MR. SPRAKER pointed out GW 19C, west of the Denali National
Park and Preserve, is an area that receives conpetition between
gui des. One guide said that conpetition in this area has been
building, primarily due to actions the BOG took in GWJs 14A and
13D, which likely pushed sonme of the guides into GW 19C
Again, when an area is fully utilized, the areas of access are
limted, with a finite nunber of areas to access the sheep
ar eas. Additionally, guides spend the whole season at their
canps so it limts the residents who can hunt in these areas.

2:36:47 PM

MR. SPRAKER said the next BOG neeting will be held in Kenai next
Fri day. He said the BOG has 53 proposals to consider, of which
nine proposals address sonme type of conpetition, overcrowding,
or over harvest issues. He concluded that substantial concern
exi sts between gui des and resident hunters.

MR. SPRAKER, in summary, said that the BGCSB |icenses about 15-
20 new registered guides annually, but in the board s opinion,
the state cannot accomopdate that |evel of growh wthout

additional hunting restrictions. He predicted that the new
guides will have difficulties conpeting with established guides
in their area, but these guides will likely be able to conpete
wi th residents. Unless additional |imts are inposed, it wll

spill down to the residents and their ability to take gane, he
predi ct ed.

2:38:15 PM

MR. SPRAKER rai sed anot her concern, which he referred to as "hot
spot" hunts. He explained that as the BOG renedies one area

the problem is pushed to another area. He characterized the

"hot spot"™ hunts as problem that has been addressed in a
pi ecenmeal manner since fixing one area pushes use into another
ar ea. He recommended sonme sort of a "global" approach as a
better neans to consider hunter pressure.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- March 11, 2013



MR. SPRAKER concluded that adopting a system that addresses
overcrowdi ng and overuse will result in a nore stable guiding
systemthat will benefit the resident Al askan hunters.

2:40: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER comented that slide 23 states the
proposal w Il pronmote nulti-generation famly businesses. He
expressed concern that this may create an entitlenent nentality.
He wondered whet her this wll create speci al i nt er est

| egislation that would not withstand constitutional nuster.

CO CHAIR FEIGE pointed out that M. Spraker represents the BOG
and not the ADF&G

2:41: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK expressed an i nt erest in better
understanding the wildlife conservation portion of the proposal.
He recalled reasons for the changes included the guides did not
want to conpete and ram sizes were smaller. It sounds Iike
[imting the nunber of guides in an area would help, but he
wondered if [the proposal] would reduce the nunber of overall
hunt s. He was uncertain how the wldlife conservation would
occur under the proposed GCP.

MR. SPRAKER answered that he has identified one of the issues
the BOG has struggled to address. He said the BOG does not | ook
at whether there are too nmany guides, but considers whether

there are too many hunters. Thus BOG determ nes how many
hunters can be allowed in an area. Since sheep requires hunters
to take a full curl ram and nothing smaller, it is a self-

regul ating system Additionally, the BOG has inplenmented a
selected antler harvest for non-residents for npose and in nost
areas of the state for a bull with a mninum 50-inch antler
spread with four brow tines or three brow tines. I n essence,
the BOG has noved to a conservation approach by limting size.
However, the "bottomline" is that in sone cases there are still
too many hunters. He agreed it would not change the outcone to
allow just as many guides in an area without also limting the
total nunber of hunters. Certainly, the guides nust submt a
request or wunderstanding that they take a certain nunber of
noose or bear in each area, which is submtted as part of the
operational plan. This is one way the BOG has requested the
conservation be addressed in the GCP proposal. Additionally, a
gui de who operates in an area for 10 years under a concession
will be looking for a stable financial plan so he would

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 28- March 11, 2013



basically "farm the nunbers of aninmals he has in his area. Not
only does the GCP pronote Iland stewardship, but wldlife
stewardship will also be enhanced. In conclusion, the BOG faces
many chall enges, but the last step the BOG takes is to require
permt hunts to severely restrict the nunbers of hunters.

2:44:56 PM

KELLY VREM Chair, Big Ganme Commercial Services Board (BGCSB)
referred to the statenent [on slide 23] the proposal wll
pronote multi-generation famly businesses. He expl ained that
he included this statement in his presentation because nost of
the guides he knows discourage their sons and daughters from
entering the business since guiding is too unstable at this
poi nt . He envisioned if the business of guiding was nore
stable, the guide's children would be nentored, which could
result in better guides; however, he did not nean to inply the
children woul d take over the same GV

MR. VREM offered to cover the remaining bullet points on slide
23 entitled, "Big Ganme Commercial Services Board - Perspective.”
He said Alaska cannot avoid restricting guide activities. He
offered his belief that the state is approaching a saturation
poi nt [of hunters]. He offered his belief that the public and
even sonme guides are getting fed up, including sone older, very
fit qguides. He agreed that guide concessions pronote good
citizenship and stewardship. The gui des who have federal guide
use areas can have them revoked if they don't adhere to their
operations plan or overharvest aninals. Further, guides wth
concessions tend to develop relationships wth the Iloca
villages and |ocal hunters. Finally, these guides "farm their
areas since they depend on themin future years.

2:48: 15 PM

MR. VREM turned to the bullet relating that |and nanagers are
able to help BGCSB enforce regul ations. The BGCSB can only
enforce behavior and professional standards; however, the |and
manager controls the access. For exanple, currently a guide
operating on state |and can keep on operating despite violations
since the DNR nust provide the |and use authorization. The
control that the land nmanagers can exert over an occupant is
tremendous and should not be overl ooked. In particular, this
has been evident for guides operating on federal |ands who nust
be in conpliance.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -29- March 11, 2013



MR. VREM turned to the bullet point that concessions insure
long-term stability for future guides. He suggested the
concessions could create a nore stable guide business, one that
all ows guides to plan their businesses.

MR. VREM offered his belief that in sonme areas of the state it
is the transporters exerting nore pressure on the resource than
are the guides, which he experienced when he guided in Southwest
Al aska. He referred to AS 08.54.790 [12][B], which read
[original punctuation provided]:

[12] "transportation services" neans the carriage
for conpensation of big ganme hunters, their equipnent,
or big gane aninmals harvested by hunters to, from or
in the field; "transportation services" does not
include the carriage by aircraft of big ganme hunters,
their equipnment, or big game animals harvested by
hunters ...

(B) by an air taxi operator or air carrier for
which the <carriage of big gane hunters, their
equi pnent, or big ganme animals harvested by hunters is
only an incidental portion of its business; in this
subpar agr aph, "incidental" nmeans transportation
provided to a big game hunter by an air taxi operator
or air carrier who does not ... "

MR. VREM offered his belief that this |anguage creates a huge
| oophol e. The BGCSB wll need the legislature's help to
elimnate this provision before transporter conpliance can
occur. Wiile he has personally found nost |icensed transporters
are honest, it is the air taxis who operate under the [AS
08.54.790 [12](B)] |oophole that have caused nost of the
problenms. On the North Slope, the two biggest service providers
for drop-off service are "hiding" behind this exenption. He
apol ogi zed but needed to leave the neeting now in order to
travel to a BGCSB neeti ng.

2:52: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether penalty provisions simlar
to the federal concessions would be covered under regulations.
He specifically asked whether soneone working outside their
operational plan would be subject to suspension.

MR. VREM replied that is his assunption. He said he couldn't

speak for the DNR, but the federal concessions have an annual
performance review Wil e he serves on the BGCSB, he has been

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 30- March 11, 2013



both a comenter and a spectator [on federal reviews.] He
anticipated that the penalty provisions would be nore refined as
t he process conti nues.

MR. COX responded that absolutely, the permts would be subject
to terns and conditions, which wll be established by
regul ati on.
2:53:. 44 PM

MR. VREM responding to Representative Johnson's fear about the
implied contract, enphasized that guides do not seek an inplied

contract or buyout provision. He said this has never been the
case.

2:54:56 PM

THOR STACEY; Regi st ered Qui de 1194; Lobbyi st Al aska

Pr of essi onal Hunters Associ ation (APHA), introduced hinself.

JOE KLUTSCH, Mast er Qui de 91; Representati ve, Al aska
Pr of essi onal Hunters Associ ation (APHA), introduced hinself.

2:55:25 PM

MR. STACEY, who al so hol ds Registered Guide |icense nunber 1194,
is testifying on behalf of the Al aska Professional Hunters

Associ ati on. First, guiding is a conplex issue involving a
nunber of agencies with oversight over conmmercial hunting and
wildlife resources. Currently, in order to obtain a land use

aut hori zation on state lands, a registered guide nust apply to
the DNR and pay a $500 fee. It does not matter how many pending
i nvestigations, game violations by clients, or problenms wth
assi stant guide conpliance, the DNR is conpelled to issue the
| and use permit and has no authority to deny, revoke, or suspend
the land use authorization. However, on federal |ands, the
gui de concession program seeks to have the nost qualified guide
hold a specific geographic unit. The selected applicant is
subject to a progressive fee structure, but is chosen based on
his know edge, conpliance wth operating permt, reported
enpl oyee safety record, and reported client use days in the
field.

2:57: 08 PM

MR. STACEY said the DNR has an opportunity to develop a simlar
program in the form of the guide concession program (GCP). The

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -31- March 11, 2013



guestion before the conmttee should not be focused on whether
gui des should have six assistant guides or the fee structure
but whether to enpower the DNR to geographically restrict guides
based on a system that rewards quality, experience, and pronotes
st ewar dshi p anong operators on its | ands.

MR. STACEY indicated the current status quo has been to
encourage an unlimted conpetitive entry at the expense of
degraded wildlife resources and state residents, non-residents,
and all user groups. He supported the [proposal in HB 158],
which would enpower DNR to encourage and pronote a guide
selection program that rewards the nost qualified experienced
applicants, encourages them to be w se stewards of the land and
resources and penalizes them or revokes |and use authorization
if the guides violate the public's trust.

2:58: 18 PM

MR. STACEY conpared APHA' s guides operating concessions on
federal |ands since 1988 to those operating on state |lands. The
gui des operating on federal |ands have seen their opportunities
remain stable or flourish whereas guides operating on state
| ands have seen declining and unstabl e businesses. He offered
his belief the state program has harnmed the public. He said
t hat conpetitive, unrestricted, commercial opportunity has never
been the state's policy for renewable resource devel opnent,

beginning with fish trap restrictions. In conclusion, the
proposed guide concession program would reward nerit and
experience when selecting guides for concessions. Finally, the

proposal is designed to charge appropriate fees and give the
state the ability to deny or revoke permts.

2:59: 18 PM

MR. KLUTSCH said he has been living on the King Sal non Peninsul a
for alnost 40 years and has operated a small summer gui ded sport
fishing operation. He currently operates Katmai Cuide Service
and is a master guide, nunber 91. Further, he has been guiding
on federal |ands post-Onsichek. He said everything that he had
wor ked for eight years went away when the ruling was issued

Subsequently, a Task Force on Guiding and Gane was appoi nted by
Governor Steve Cowper, wth representatives of the guiding
i ndustry, state, and federal |and managers participating over
several years to fornmulate a series of recommendations to
restructure sone type of statutory and regulatory framework for
gui di ng. Wile a state board was not authorized to rank,
eval uate, or establish a specific concession area, the federal

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -32- March 11, 2013



US Fish and WIidlife Service (USFWS) and the National Park
Service (NPS) established concessions. He described hinself as
one of the "guinea pigs" of the federal concession system He
said currently holds and has held permts for over 25 years in
the Al aska Peninsula WIdlife Refuge, the Becharof Refuge, the
Kodi ak  Nati onal Wldlife Refuge, and the National Par k
concessi on contract in Aniakchak National Mnunent and Preserve.

3:01: 23 PM

MR. KLUTSCH said in short, the justification for this system was
for the benefit of the [wildlife] resources and the users.
Despite the regulatory constraints of federal agencies, the
quality of the experience on federal lands is far greater than
it is on state | ands. He asked to address Representative P.
Wl son's question on accountability, which he said is done by an
operations plan. He detailed the operations plan, which
i ncl udes pre-season client rosters, the proposed take by species
by date, and the assistant guides. The operations plan under
the proposed GCP system would be adm nistered by DNR, including
a requirement for an operations plan and a post-season hunt
record submtted to the BGCSB. In fact, this record provides
all the data, including the hunters, the species hunted, and the
dates of the hunt.

MR. KLUTSCH, addressing Representative Johnson's question on
whether this would constitute a contract, said the federal
agenci es address this under permt stipulations, which says that
nothing in the permt supersedes the Board of Ganme's authority
to set seasons and bag limts.

VR. KLUTSCH offered his belief that the status quo is

unaccept abl e. He suggested that wthout the ©preferred
alternative [as proposed in HB 158], wldlife resources wll
di m nish, which will primarily affect residents and subsistence
users. He acknow edged the process to develop the concession
program has been a |ong one, and his testinony has been repeated
each year. In his view, everything that was predicted to happen
has happened. In conclusion, he offered his belief that these

probl ems can be fi xed.

3:04:14 PM

MR BILL STEVENSON, Registered CGuide 661, stated he has been
Al aska resident for over 50 years and registered guide for over

20 years. He related he has significant experience in GVl 14A
and 13D. He supported guide use areas on state lands, simlar

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 33- March 11, 2013



to the federal guiding concession program He said having a
gui de area does not represent an entitlement, but is sonething
that nmust be earned. The catalyst for this current push is the
overcrowding of guides in GMJ 13D and 14A in the Chugach
Mount ai ns. Prior to 2000, six guides operated in the
af orenentioned GWs, which increased in 2008 to 38 guide
oper at i ons.

MR.  STEVENSON hi ghlighted what he characterized as an al nost
"silent problent which is the nunber of clients an air taxi
takes into an area, Previously, only a few guides had their own
ai rplanes so operators typically could avoid one another;
however, now, one air taxi operator will take in over 50 clients
on the ground at one tine. Several air taxi operators have
multiple aircraft, while others have a single operator with a
Super Cub. In summary, he agreed a guide area system would be
great to have in place, but the transporter issue nust also be
addr essed.

3:06: 52 PM

MR. STEVENSON said a few problens exist with the fornms/permt
applications that nmust be filled out. He enphasized that guides
wi th concessions can act as stewards of the lands and wldlife,
whereas with totally wunregulated areas what happens is the

nentality that if you do not do it, the next guy wll. For
exanple, if one air taxi doesn't drop clients off at an
airstrip, the next one wll. He characterized the overcrowdi ng

can be visualized as layers of transparencies with lines drawn
for activity. Over tine sonme lines get quite thick and pretty
soon the entire transparency is bl ocked.

MR. STEVENSON specifically characterized the sheep popul ations
in GV 14A and 13D as being a "perfect storm"™ After severa
difficult wnters, sheep populations were down. Al t hough
hunters don't inpact ewes and |anbs, since they hunt rans, the
ewes are affected by nature and eventually the ram popul ation is
decr eased.

3:10: 17 PM

MR. STEVENSON identified the four basic user groups as including
Native, resident, air taxis, and guides. He described the
Native use he is nost familiar with as ones that use relatively
small areas near villages and expand to nearby waterways.
Typically, residents use the road system and ATVs, wth sone
aircraft wuse. Air taxis and guides are comrercial operators

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 34- March 11, 2013



have made significant investnments and make a living from profit.
He suggested one guide may have 10-15 clients, but nany take
fewer clients, although a few guides take out nore clients.
However, the snallest air taxi operator will take nore clients
to the field than any of the guides. He offered his belief that
the proposed GCP proposal would limt the smaller of the two

user groups. He estimated that non-resident hunters take about
10 percent of the gane, but contribute about 80 percent of the
revenues. He remarked that by and |arge, the guiding industry

is conprised of "good" guides with a few "bad appl es."”

MR. STEVENSON enphasized that a guided client contributes far
nore revenue to Alaska than an unguided client. Overall, the
| arger air taxi operators may contribute nore than guides, but
the air taxi operators have a nuch l|arger footprint and inpact.
He offered his belief that a GCP would be a worthwhile program
but only if it wll increase the quality of the experience for
the guiding industry w thout |eaving "the door open further for
the air taxi operators.”

3:13: 20 PM

CO- CHAIR FEIGE held over HB 158 and announced public testinony
woul d be taken March 13, 2013.

3:13: 27 PM
ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 3:13 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 35- March 11, 2013



